
AGENDA 

COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

November 9, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

CCMC’S core purpose is to deliver quality health care locally. 
President 
David Allison 
 term expires 03/12 

 
Vice-President 
Kristin Carpenter 
 term expires 08/12 

 
Secretary 
Tim Joyce 
 term expires 08/14 

 
Board Members 
Elmer (E.J.) Cheshier 
 term expires 08/13 

Nichole Hunt 
 term expires 08/12 

Jim Kacsh 
 term expires 08/12 

NVE Tribal Council - Vacant 
 term expires 08/13 

 
Acting CEO 
Stephen Sundby, PhD

 

I. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call – David Allison, Kristin Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, 

Nichole Hunt, Jim Kacsh, Timothy Joyce 

C. Establishment of a Quorum 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

A. Guest Speaker 

B. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes per speaker). 

Speaker must give name and item on the agenda which 

they are addressing. 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

A. HSB Meeting Minutes – 10/12/2011…………….…....Page 1 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE  

A. Administrator’s Report…….………………………………….Page 9 

 

B. President’s Report 

C. Finance Report 

i. Balance Sheet as of 09/30/11…..……………………………………………………………Page 10 

ii. YTD Income Statement as of 9/30/11……………………………………………………Page 11 

iii. Three Year Comparative Income Statements (YTD as of 9/30/11)…………Page 12 

D. City Council Report 

VII. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Computer Server 

B. Privileging of Dr. William Doyle, M.D 

C. Liaison to Sound Alternatives Advisory Board 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION –   



 

A. The board shall give members of the public the opportunity to comment on matters 

which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and are appropriate for 

discussion in an open session. Public comment limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 

X. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which 

would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation 

and character of any person, provided that person my require a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, city charter, or 

ordinance are required to be confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not 

subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or 

labor negotiations.



 

- 1 - 
 

Minutes 

Community Health Services Board 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

October 12, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

Kristin Carpenter called the HSB meeting to order at 7:04 pm. Board members present: 

David Allison (telephonically), Kristin Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, Nichole Hunt 

(telephonically), Tim Joyce, and Jim Kacsh. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO)(telephonically), Zhiyong Li 

(CFO).  

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS – None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Joyce, S/Kacsh: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to approve the consent calendar. 

 

a. Health Services Board meeting minutes from September 14, 2011 
b. First quarter 2012 policies 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas – 0 nays. Motion passed.   

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE   

 

A. Administrator’s Report 
   



 

- 2 - 
 

Sundby reported that the facility underwent a Critical Access Hospital survey in 

September. Most of the findings were addressed or fixed before the surveyors left. 

Remaining items must be completed by November 4, 2011.  

 

Sundby reported on the most recent Providence visits, which both went very well. 

Susan Humphrey-Barnett and Angela Lewis met with managers and focused on the Long 

Term Care operations. The Administrators from Valdez and Kodiak also visited along 

with Kodiak’s Director of Quality Improvement, primarily focusing on acute care, ER, and 

clinic operations. 

 

Sound Alternative’s Recovery Month Celebration drew 55 people; this level of 

participation was equal to the first year a similar event was held in the Mat-Su. 

 

Sundby reported on a deferred maintenance grant that may be available through 

behavioral health, and he is keeping an eye on that as potential for the facility. 

 

Carpenter asked Sundby to list how many openings CCMC has for each staff position in 

future reports. Sundby responded that CCMC is seeking two (2) Physicians, two (2) 

Physicians’ Assistant/mid-level practitioners, and two (2) nurses. He further confirmed 

that the Licensed Clinical Social Worker will be in Cordova on the 15th of October. 

Carpenter asked for clarification on when Providence will be able to assist with these 

positions. Sundby noted that Providence has already been assisting by providing some 

names of individuals to recruit, and while those haven’t resulted in hires yet, it 

demonstrates Providence’s willingness to assist. Sundby added that once Providence is 

onboard, CCMC may be able to “share” an Occupational Therapist with Valdez, which 

will provide a basis to improve our Swing Bed numbers. 

 

B. President’s Report   

 

Allison reported that City Council has not yet seen a copy of the contract with 

Providence but it is being worked by the City Manager. Allison further noted that it 

looks like the Health Services Board will remain a governing Board of sorts to start with 

because PERS rules require it; the ultimate goal is to covert the Board to advisory. 

Allison expressed his hope for a contract effective the beginning of the year. 

 

Carpenter announced that the Foraker Group will be in Cordova Friday, November 18th, 

from 6 to 8 pm offering Board training. Carpenter noted that since the group is going to 

continue as a governing Board, everyone should plan to participate in the training. 



 

- 3 - 
 

 

Cheshier added that PERS has been one of the real “tripping” points in the contract with 

Providence. Allison stated that there may be a clause for rural communities.  

 

C. Finance Report  

 

Li introduced the finance report by noting that for three months, patient volume has 

dropped, although revenue has increased. CCMC has also had a significant increase in 

health benefits (insurance) cost, with $150K in employer costs, which does not include 

the additional contributions from employees participating in the plan. 

 

Reporting on the annual audit, Li stated that the auditors finished their field-work. This 

year, CCMC was able to provide complete Board minutes and is storing backups and 

residents’ property in a safe deposit box. Li reported that the auditors noted that only 

one person controls inventory. Cheshier asked if they require two, and Li responded 

that there should be a second person accomplishing verification of inventory controls. Li 

also noted that the auditors would like a second individual assigned to IT security.  

 

With respect to the Balance Sheet, Li highlighted that the cash balance dropped $400K 

from last year, although the liability is less. The grant programs reflect as a negative 

asset, because the revenue must be carried that way until the funds are earned.  

 

Commenting on the three-year comparative report, Li emphasized that other than acute 

care and supplies, revenue categories have increased, largely due to the Charge Master 

update. However, the expenses have increased more than revenue. Li provided a 

handout that illustrated a three-year comparison of July through September. This chart 

shows that inpatient days dropped significantly in 2011. The billing department cannot 

account for the decline. The Emergency Room discharges did not change significantly, 

but that could be due to an increase in medevacs, which would also result in a decrease 

in inpatient days. Medevacs were likely higher due to decreased provider stability 

during 2011. Mid-level traveling practitioners staffing the ER may not be able to treat 

certain acute conditions in-house, and the ongoing instability impacts patients’ 

confidence in CCMC’s staff – those that can may request a transfer out. Li further noted 

that our lab turnover really increased, also impacting customer confidence, and Ilanka is 

using CCMC’s lab less. Through Providence’s Electronic ICU, CCMC will be able to reduce 

medevac numbers and retain more patients locally. Carpenter commented that 

stabilizing providers would help everyone become familiar with one another’s skills. Li 

added that locums tend to accumulate more hours than permanent staff because they 



 

- 4 - 
 

are in control of the hours they work. For example, locums will typically spend time 

making more detailed chart notes than permanent staff, enabling a locum to bill more 

legitimate hours. Carpenter responded that while detailed chart notes are desirable, the 

system works against CCMC financially. 

 

Hunt referred to the allowance for uncollectables on the balance sheets and asked why 

the value decreased from $851K to $212K. Li responded that $750K-worth of accounts 

with no activity since 2009, was transferred to collections. 

 

Carpenter noted that it helps that Li is looking into these financial questions.  

 

D. City Council   

 

Allison reported that the roof is on top of the City’s capital budget list as well as EHR. 

 

E. Native Village of Eyak  

 

Allison directed that the NVE Report be removed from future agendas since the NVE 

Tribal Council Representative position on the Board is vacant. Carpenter will send an 

explanatory email to NVE. 

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS   

 

 A. Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

 M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to approve the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

 

Joyce requested information on what had changed since last approved. Sundby replied 

that the current version allows mid-levels to practice in CCMC’s Emergency Room. In 

response to general consensus that the Board did not understand the requirements of 

the Medical Staff or the related Bylaws, Cheshier noted that this is where Providence 

can really assist with knowledge. Carpenter asked if the Bylaws were in an electronic 

format, and upon confirmation, requested that future changes be highlighted by staff.   

 

 A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

B. Privileging of Dr. Donna Hephinger 
 



 

- 5 - 
 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to grant privileges to Dr. Hephinger as Medical Doctor at 

CCMC. 

 

Sundby noted that both Drs. VanWinkle and Ehret interviewed Dr. Hephinger.   

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

C. Health Services Board Officers 
 

Carpenter directed that the Board needs to elect a President, Vice President, and 

Secretary. 

 

Allison was nominated for President. 

 

M/Joyce, S/Cheshier: Move to close the nominations for President. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

Carpenter was nominated for Vice President. 

 

M/Joyce, S/Cheshier: Move to close the nominations for Vice President. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

Joyce was nominated for Secretary. 

 

M/Cheshier, S/Kasch: Move to close the nominations for Secretary. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

M/Kasch, S/Joyce: Move to elect the slate of officers as nominated. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

D. FY12 Operational Budget 
 

Li  introduced two budget scenarios. The first targeted a balanced budget and was 

based on volume consistent with FY11. The first three months of FY12 provided a 



 

- 6 - 
 

baseline for the revenue and contractual numbers and EHR was moved to the capital 

budget. The second projection reflects an increase of $200K in contractual services and 

the potential that CCMC may need to reimburse Medicare. 

 

Joyce stated that the first proposal was very optimistic and that he believed CCMC 

would be in the negative in the end and that it is just a matter of by how much. Hunt 

commented that the Board needs to keep in mind the management fees that will be 

incurred with a contract. 

 

Carpenter asked when the financial benefits of all the changes will kick in. Sundby 

replied that he expects next fiscal year; EICU will have the first impact and then other 

services, like an Occupational Therapist, will help fill swing beds. 

 

Allison agreed with Joyce about wanting to be conservative. He noted that Providence 

will submit their own budget, so changes are expected, likely after the first of the year. 

Allison indicated that passing a budget at this point fulfils the Board’s obligation and 

getting the City to commit to its $400K contribution. Allison expressed his preference 

for the second proposal, and reiterated that it is time to get City Council something. 

 

M/Cheshier, S/Joyce: Move to present the FY12 budget depicted on page 42 of the 

agenda packet (Projection #2) to City Council. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

E. Capital Budget 
 

Li introduced the capital budget list by noting that any of the items will increase CCMC’s 

depreciation expense. Li discussed the IT Server and explained the manual W-2 and 

1099 process from FY11. Alternatively, a preferred option would be for CCMC to 

contract with an external entity to host CCMC’s processes, but the monthly cost won’t 

be available for a week. Cheshier commented that CCMC needs an option to carry the 

processes through until EHR is implemented. Allison responded that the IT Server for 

$100K should remain on the capital budget list and that he can explain to Council the 

alternative lower-cost options available. 

 

Li also noted that EHR was inadvertently omitted and should be added as #2 under 

Equipment and IT. Providence has indicated that CCMC does not have to go with EPIC if 

we can get a better financial deal with another system. Healthland (our current vendor) 



 

- 7 - 
 

can provide a system for $580K capital investment and $100K annual maintenance fee. 

Carpenter noted that functionality should be the focus, not the cost and cited the need 

to do a needs assessment first. Carpenter suggested that CCMC spend $7-8K on a 

consultant to develop a checklist of needs, including the interface. Hunt responded that 

a consultant would not be needed as the department heads can do the needs 

assessment based on how CCMC does business now and how the various systems match 

CCMC’s processes. Joyce noted that Providence will be a key factor and may even 

provide some assistance, to which Hunt asked if assistance to EHR implementation 

should be included in the contract. 

 

Allison requested a return to the point of order and stated that EHR should be added to 

the Capital Budget list. He further noted that EHR is on the Council’s list and therefore 

should be on the Board’s. Kasch requested clarification regarding the amount. 

Carpenter directed that EHR in the amount of $1M be added as item #2 under 

Equipment and IT. 

 

M/Cheshier, S/Joyce: Move to send the revised capital budget list to City Council. 

 

A roll call vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS   

 

No discussion items. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION   

 

None. 

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

  

Joyce thanked Allison and Carpenter for taking on the roles of President and Vice 

President again. 

 

Cheshier echoed the thanks and expressed positive hopes for the capital funding, 

contract negotiation, and transition. 

 

Hunt asked if Board members could teleconference the Board training. Carpenter 

directed staff to coordinate with the City Clerk. 



 

- 8 - 
 

 

Carpenter thanked Li for putting together the budget and assisting the Board in 

understanding the numbers. She further expressed her hope that Li is still with CCMC 

following the transition. The next HSB meeting will be November 9th. 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

 

 None.  

  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Cheshier, S/Joyce: Move to adjourn.  Unanimously approved.  Meeting adjourned at 

8:48 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 

 

 Reviewed by:  HSB Secretary, Tim Joyce 

 

 

  



 

- 9 - 
 

 

 

 

To:   Health Services Board 

From:  Stephen Sundby, Ph.D., CCMC Acting Administrator 

RE:   Administrator Report 

Date:  November 9, 2011 

 

 

1. The Plan of Correction was accepted for the State of Alaska 9/19/2011 Critical Access Hospital 
(CAH)/Life Safety Standards Surveys. 

 

2. Providence visit: Susan Humphrey-Barnett (Administrator for Area Operations Administration) 
visited on Friday, November 4th.   

 

3. A new server is needed to update our Healthland financial software in order to bring CCMC in 
compliance with 5010 requirements.  

 

4. I attended the State of Alaska Mental Health Board and the Alaska Commission for Behavioral 
Health Certification meetings in Anchorage. 

 

5. The Sound Alternatives Advisory Board Meeting is scheduled for November 16th.  
 

6. Staffing:  
 

a. Positions we are advertising to fill: 
i. Physicians – 2  

ii. Physicians Assistant/Mid-Level Practitioner – 2 
iii. Nurses – 5 
iv. Radiology Technician – 1 
v. Laboratory Technician – 2 

vi. Licensed Occupational Therapist – 1 
 

7. Stephen Sundby and Zhiyong Li are meeting on Fridays at 9:00 AM with Angela Arnold and Penney 
Benson (NVE) to coordinate and collaborate where opportunities arise.  



 

- 10 - 
 

 
  



 

- 11 - 
 

 



 

- 12 - 
 

 



 

- 13 - 
 

 
 

 

 


